GODALMING TOWN COUNCIL

Tel: 01483 523575

E-Mail: office@godalming-tc.gov.uk Website: www.godalming-tc.gov.uk 107-109 High Street Godalming Surrey GU7 1AQ

13 December 2024

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU to attend the **ENVIRONMENT & PLANNING COMMITTEE** Meeting to be held in the Council Chamber, Waverley Borough Council, The Burys, Godalming on THURSDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2024 at 7.00pm. or at the conclusion of the preceding Full Council meeting, whichever is later.

Andy Jeffery

Andy Jeffery Town Clerk

If you wish to speak at this meeting please contact Godalming Town Council on 01483 523575 or email <u>office@godalming-tc.gov.uk</u>

Where possible proceedings will be live streamed via the Town Council's YouTube page. If you wish to watch the council meeting's proceedings, please go to Godalming Town Council's <u>YouTube</u> page.

Committee Members:

Councillor Kiehl – Chair Councillor Crooks – Vice Chair

Councillor Adam Councillor Clayton Councillor Crowe Councillor C Downey Councillor S Downey Councillor Duce Councillor Follows Councillor Heagin Councillor Holliday Councillor Martin Councillor PMA Rivers Councillor Steel Councillor Thomson Councillor Weightman Councillor Williams

<u>A G E N D A</u>

1. <u>MINUTES</u>

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on the 28 November 2024, a copy of which has been circulated previously.

2. <u>APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE</u>

3. DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER REGISTERABLE INTERESTS

To receive from Members any declarations of interests in relation to any items included on the agenda for this meeting required to be disclosed by the Localism Act 2011 and the Godalming Members' Code of Conduct.

The Comments and observations from the following Waverley Borough Councillors are preliminary ones prior to consideration at Borough Council level and are based on the evidence and representations to the Town Council.

Councillor PMA Rivers

4. PETITIONS/STATEMENTS/QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

The Chair to invite members of the public to make representations, ask or answer questions and give evidence in respect of the business on the agenda or other matters not on the agenda. This forum to be conducted in accordance with Standing Order 5:

- the period of time designated for public participation at a meeting for a maximum of three minutes per person or 15 minutes overall, unless otherwise directed by the Chair of the meeting;
- a question shall not require a response at the meeting nor start a debate on the question. The Chair of the meeting may direct that a written or oral response be given. If a matter raised is one for principal councils or other authorities, the person making representations will be informed of the appropriate contact details.

5. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

To consider any questions from Councillors in accordance with Standing Order 6.

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS – CONSULTATION

Members to consider the following applications:

Natwest, 77 High Street, Godalming GU7 1AW

WA/2024/02351 - Installation of replacement external ATM.
 WA/2024/02352 - Display of non-illuminated replacement ATM surround signage.
 WA/2024/02353 - Listed Building consent for installation of replacement external ATM and associated internal works.

The full schedule of planning applications received from the Local Planning Authority since the last meeting is attached for the information of Members.

7. PLANNING APPLICATIONS – SUBJECTED TO AMENDMENT

Members to consider planning applications previously considered by this committee for which subsequent amendments have been submitted.

8. PLANNING APPEALS

Appeal Decisions

WA/2023/01272 – Summersby House, 1 Summersby Close GU7 3BG – Conversion of a single dwelling into two dwellings.

The appeal against the decision of WBC to refuse planning permission was allowed and therefore planning permission is granted.

WA/2024/00029 – Lakeside Dental Practice, 1 Shackstead Lane GU7 1RL – Erection of first floor extension and alterations.

The appeal against the decision of WBC to refuse planning permission was dismissed.

9. CLIMATE RESPONSE – ITEM TO NOTE & DECISION

On 9 December 2024, the National Association of Local Councils, a body that represents over 10,000 town and parish council's which serve 35 million people, announced the finalists for this year's <u>Star Council Awards</u>.

Godalming Town Council has been selected as a finalist in the **Climate Response of the Year, which** recognises the Council's hard work, perseverance, and unique qualities in highlighting innovative projects that show an understanding of climate change and how its impact is being mitigated locally. The other finalists are:

Chippenham Town Council, Wiltshire Exmouth Town Council, Devon Falmouth Town Council, Cornwall West Monkton Parish Council, Somerset

In announcing the finalists NALC stated that:

"We are delighted to unveil the prestigious <u>Star Council Awards</u> 2024 finalists, showcasing the best of England's parish and town councils.

This annual celebration of innovation and commitment highlights the transformative contributions of councils, councillors, clerks, county associations and council staff to their communities.

These awards reflect the vibrant spirit, commitment, and creativity characterising parish and town councils nationwide. This year's finalists, chosen after a rigorous selection process by an expert panel of judges, have set themselves apart through their exceptional efforts. Their achievements underscore the vital role that parish and town councils play in fostering strong, resilient, and thriving communities.

Each finalist represents a shining example of the dedication and passion that drives the parish and town council sector. From championing sustainability and tackling climate change to fostering youth engagement and innovative community services, these finalists demonstrate the power of local leadership to make a tangible difference.

Congratulations to all the finalists! Your efforts continue to inspire and uplift communities, highlighting the invaluable role of parish and town councils in shaping a brighter future for England."

The winner of the award will be announced at a parliamentary reception at the House of Lords on 25 February 2025 (13.30-16.30) – GTC has been invited to nominate a representative to attend on behalf of the Council at this event. Members are requested to let the Town Clerk know who their representative will be so that NALC can be informed to arrange the parliamentary pass.

10. CLIMATE AND NATURE ACTION PLANS FOR PARISHES – ITEM TO NOTE

<u>Part four of the Council's Corporate Plan</u> reaffirms GTC's declaration of a climate and ecological emergency, and sets outs its aims and objectives over a number of areas including:

- biodiversity and ecology management measures;
- carbon reduction/energy management measures;
- water conservation/water management measures; and
- water management and other environmental management issues.

From these a range of actions were identified to meet the Council's Biodiversity Duty, including the need to establish a Green Space Strategy, analyse scope 3 emissions, baseline water usage and waste and the creation of appropriate management plans.

In support of the above, on 14 December 2023 Members created a Task & Finish Group to meet GTC's Biodiversity Duty (Min No 408-23 refers). The Members of that group being, Cllrs Adam, Clayton, Crowe and Thomson.

To support of the aim of creating a practical Climate and Nature Action Plan, Godalming Town Council, along with a small number of other local councils, has become a 'pilot' council to work with the Surrey County Council's Greener Future Group to create a 'Toolkit' (attached for the information of Members) to support Surrey's parishes in creating Climate Action and Nature Plans appropriate for their area. The pilot will run for 6 months.

The Town Clerk has reviewed the Toolkit and in preparation for baselining has downloaded the Centre for Sustainable Energy's Carbon Footprint Report (Impact Report) for the Civil Parish of Godalming (attached for the information of Members).

In reading through the Toolkit, Members will note that the Council is already doing many of the toolkit's actions/suggestions such as identifying sources of emissions, carbon auditing, developing an emissions reduction plan (works programme to decarbonise GTC's buildings/ transition to an electric vehicle fleet etc), setting targets for emission reduction, energy efficient buildings and improved land management for Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG). However, there is more GTC can do, especially in regard to waste and water management, land mapping and engaging with the community.

A Parish Climate and Nature Action Plan could assist in the delivery of climate and ecological goals by providing a pathway for the Council to follow.

It is suggested that the Biodiversity Duty group be asked to review the 'toolkit' and supporting report template and utilise the toolkit to create a Climate and Nature Action Plan for Godalming.

If agreed, the Biodiversity Duty group's draft Climate and Nature Action Plan should be considered by this committee, alongside feedback on the useability of the toolkit to assist the Greener Future Group in refining it for future use.

11. LONGBOURNE GREEN PLAY AREA CONSULTATION – ITEM TO NOTE

Waverley Borough Council has informed GTC that following public consultation and the subsequent tender for the refurbishment of Longbourne Green play area in Godalming, three designs which WBC feels incorporate the play values highlighted by local families and children have been shortlisted for further consultation.

The three designs can be seen by visiting <u>www.waverley.gov.uk/playareas</u> or by using the direct survey link: <u>www.waverley.gov.uk/longbournegreen</u>. WBC has promoted these options and the survey by which it hopes to determine the most popular scheme, to residents living around the Longbourne Green area, via social media and by posters displayed at the existing play area.

The outcome of the survey will contribute to the overall tender evaluation process and voting is open until 12pm on Friday, 20 December 2024.

Waverley hopes to appoint the winning contractor in the new year with a view to having the refurbishment complete by April 2025.

12. <u>COMMUNICATIONS ARISING FROM THIS MEETING</u>

Members to identify which matters (if any), discussed at this meeting, are to be publicised.

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Environment & Planning Committee is scheduled to take place in the Council Chamber on Thursday, 9 January 2025 at 6.30pm.

14. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Brought forward by permission of the Chair. Requests to be submitted prior to commencement of the meeting.

GODALMING TOWN COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT & PLANNING – SCHEDULE OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS – 19 NOVEMBER-9 DECEMBER 2024

<u>Ref</u>	<u>Ward</u>	Proposal	Site Address	GTC Observations
WBC Weekly List 24/47				
WA/2024/02191	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Alterations to utilise existing flat roof as a balcony with access door replacing existing window; installation of a glazed balustrade.	Flat 4 Shadyhanger House 21 Shadyhanger Godalming GU7 2HS	
WA/2024/02244	Godalming Farncombe & Catteshall	Hip to gable and dormer extensions to provide habitable accommodation in roof space (retrospective).	55 George Road Farncombe Godalming GU7 3LU	
WA/2024/02218	Godalming Holloway	Erection of extensions and alterations, including extending the existing ridge line to form additional habitable accommodation, partial alteration of garage to provide habitable accommodation and alterations to elevations.	10 Maplehatch Close Godalming GU7 1TQ	
WBC Weekly List 2	4/48			·
WA/2024/02274	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Change of use of land to residential curtilage; erection of outbuilding and boundary fence (retrospective).	Green Dolphins Ballfield Road Godalming GU7 2EZ	
WA/2024/02291	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Certificate of Lawfulness under Section 192 for alterations to reposition garage door and front doors.	12 Twycross Road Godalming GU7 2HH	
WA/2024/02273	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Alterations to elevations of existing garage to provide one flat.	95 Chapel Fields Godalming GU7 2AA	
TM/2024/02285	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO TREES SUBJECT TO TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 33/06	Woodcourt, Knoll Road, Godalming GU7 2EL	

<u>Ref</u>	Ward	Proposal	Site Address	GTC Observations
TM/2024/02253	Godalming Central & Ockford	APPLICATION FOR REMOVAL OF TREE SUBJECT OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER WA238	4 Camargue Place Godalming GU7 1JQ	
WA/2024/02302	Godalming Central & Ockford	Erection of a single storey extension following demolition of existing conservatory.	Well Cottage 61 Catteshall Lane Godalming GU7 1JS	
WA/2024/02294	Godalming Farncombe & Catteshall	Application under Section 73 to vary Condition 1 (approved plans) of WA/2024/01564 to allow for reduction in size of 2 storage sheds.	The Manor Inn Guildford Road Godalming GU7 3BX	
TM/2024/02271	Godalming Holloway	APPLICATION FOR WORKS TO TREE SUBJECT OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 16/01	1 Tuesley Corner Godalming GU7 1TB	
WBC Weekly List 2	4/49			
WA/2024/02356	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Certificate of Lawfulness under Section 192 for hip to gable and dormer extensions and installation of rooflights to provide habitable accommodation in roof space.	39 Marshall Road Godalming GU7 3AT	
WA/2024/02358	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Erection of bay window extension.	39 Marshall Road Godalming GU7 3AT	
WA/2024/02361	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Erection of a single storey outbuilding.	29 Marshall Road Godalming GU7 3AT	
WA/2024/02343	Godalming Central & Ockford	Erection of a roof extension and dormer windows to allow loft conversion.	5 Old Lodge Close Godalming GU7 2LA	
WA/2024/02353	Godalming Central & Ockford	Listed Building consent for installation of replacement external ATM and associated internal works.	Natwest 77 High Street Godalming GU7 1AW	
WA/2024/02352	Godalming Central & Ockford	Display of non-illuminated replacement ATM surround signage.	Natwest 77 High Street Godalming	

<u>Ref</u>	<u>Ward</u>	Proposal	Site Address	GTC Observations
WA/2024/02351	Godalming Central & Ockford	Installation of replacement external ATM.	Natwest 77 High Street Godalming	
WA/2024/02329	Godalming Holloway	Erection of extensions and alterations following demolition of existing conservatory.	27 Maplehatch Close Godalming GU7 1TQ	
WA/2024/02323	Godalming Holloway	Erection of single storey and two storey extensions and alterations following demolition of existing garage.	Woodleigh 35 Minster Road Godalming GU7 1SP	
WA/2024/02345	Godalming Holloway	Erection of extensions and alterations together with hip to gable and dormer extensions to provide habitable accommodation in roof space.	28 Town End Street Godalming GU7 1BH	
CA/2024/02344		MUNSTEAD CONSERVATION AREA REMOVAL OF TREES	1 Old Rectory Gardens Godalming GU7 1XB	
WA/2024/02356	Godalming Binscombe & Charterhouse	Certificate of Lawfulness under Section 192 for hip to gable and dormer extensions and installation of rooflights to provide habitable accommodation in roof space.	39 Marshall Road Godalming GU7 3AT	



Creating Climate and Nature Action Plans For Parishes

How to create an action plan for your local area

Contents

Introduction	—— 03
Why create a plan?	04
Current overview	05
Creating a baseline Parish emissions Impact Tool - what is it and how to use it Organisational emissions Setting a target & reducing Understanding the parish's emissions	—— 06
Creating a baseline for Nature & Resilience Understanding your land Land App - What it is and how to use it Evaluate your land Planning what to do Quick wins you can make How to engage Why is adaptation important? Adaptation or Resilience? What changes could we see? Understanding your resilience opportunities and threats	06
Creating the plan	26

Your journey Involvement What timescale should you have Making a timeline

Surrey Resources & Actions

Buildings Transport Waste & Food Land use & Nature

Get started!

Tell your story Raise money Support local action Decision making Reporting

Extra resources

33

48

Introduction

This document is specifically aimed at parishes within Surrey that are looking to develop and implement climate and nature action plans.

If your parish is just beginning its climate action journey, this document provides a step-by-step guide to help you create a comprehensive plan from the ground up. For parishes that already have some initiatives in place, the toolkit offers additional resources and ideas to expand and improve efforts.

Parishes can pick and choose the sections and resources that are most relevant to their needs. This flexibility allows you to tailor your approach based on specific circumstances and goals. This document is accompanied by a separate template which makes it easy to organise and monitor plans. By following the guided sections and using the pre-filled examples, parishes can quickly develop a structured and actionable plan!

This document links to various external resources, providing further information and support.

Climate and Nature action plan	
Parish	
Lead.	
Reporting period:	
Introduction	4
Introduction Role of the plan	
Introduction Role of the plan Overall emissions	
Introduction Role of the plan Overall emissions Breakdown of emissions	
Introduction Role of the plan Overall ensisteme Breakdown of ensisteme This is what it means per person	
Introduction Role of the plan Overall emissions Branddown of emissions This is what it means per person What needs to happen	
Introduction Role of the plan Overall entistions Breakdown of emissions This is what it means per person What needs to happen Artien theme	
Introduction	
Introduction	
Introduction Role of the plan. Overall ensistence Presidewro of ensistence This is what it means pet person What needs to happen Action items Measuring Next eterps 1. Next year we will commit to:	





Why create a plan?

Creating a climate and nature action plan for your parish is essential. Climate change and biodiversity loss affect each area differently, so a parish-specific plan allows you to address the unique challenges your community may face, like flooding, extreme heat, or habitat degradation.

By safeguarding natural resources such as parks, rivers, and green spaces, you not only protect local ecosystems and biodiversity but also strengthen your community's resilience to climate impacts. Healthy ecosystems can buffer against extreme weather, improve air and water quality, and offer recreational benefits for residents.

Investing in nature-based solutions, like green infrastructure, enhances both climate resilience and ecological health.

A parish-specific climate and nature plan also serves as a platform to involve your community, giving residents a voice in preserving local ecosystems and making decisions about their environmental future. Protecting and enhancing nature helps preserve biodiversity, which benefits everyone in the parish by ensuring food security, pollination, and clean water sources. Adopting sustainable practices can boost the local economy. Initiatives like tree planting, solar installation, and green infrastructure projects create jobs while supporting long-term environmental goals. Many regional and national authorities now require climate and nature plans, and having one can make your parish eligible for funding, grants, and support programs that aid sustainability projects.

Starting a climate and nature action plan today prepares, protects, and preserves your community's future, ensuring a healthy environment for current and future generations. By prioritising both nature and climate action, your parish takes a proactive step toward a more sustainable, resilient future.

Current overview

Nationally, the UK aims to achieve net-zero emissions by 2050 and is implementing policies like Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) under the Environment Act, requiring developers to enhance biodiversity by at least 10% on new projects. This push reflects a growing commitment to counter biodiversity loss alongside climate change impacts. However, practical implementation is ongoing, with additional BNG regulations anticipated to support this initiative.

In Surrey, a climate strategy and 5 year climate change plan has been in place since 2021. More recently Surrey County Council is focusing on environmental restoration with its Local Nature Recovery Strategy, backed by £250,000 from the government. This plan aims to strengthen biodiversity through collaboration with local councils, landowners, and communities, addressing both climate resilience and ecological health.

All Boroughs and Districts have climate action plans in place, and many boroughs, like Surrey Heath, are tailoring their local plans to these goals, incorporating climate change and biodiversity objectives into their urban development frameworks. This not only supports nature but also improves public access to green spaces, improves the quality of housing and safeguards Surrey's natural heritage.

> Over the past few decades, 11% of Surrey's native species have gone extinct!

Locally, individual districts are developing and refining plans to meet both Surrey's and national environmental targets. Some boroughs, like Waverley, have specific biodiversity action plans to reverse habitat degradation and improve local ecosystem health. These strategies involve policies for sustainable land use and support for green infrastructure, emphasising habitat connectivity and wildlife protection across Surrey's towns and rural areas. These concerted efforts at multiple levels highlight Surrey's role in the UK's broader environmental strategy and its commitment to balancing climate action with ecological preservation.

Creating a **baseline**

Understanding and measuring your emmissions

Parish emissions

In this section, we aim to clarify what parishes should focus on when calculating emissions and creating a baseline.

Most will be working to achieve net zero for their own organisational emissions where applicable, such as emissions from buildings, procurement, vehicles, or other assets they control.

For parishes with minimal or no assets, this may require little to no direct calculations.

Parishes have a strong role to play in supporting the net zero ambitions of their entire geographical area.

While the responsibility for these broader targets is shared across the community, as parish councils you are well-placed to lead and coordinate efforts, acting as a catalyst for local climate action!



Parish emissions

Understanding where your parish emissions come from is a critical step in formulating a plan. You can't set a target if you don't know where your're starting from!

As a starting point, we recommended looking at<u>Impact Tool</u> to help you get an initial understanding of your parish emissions.

Using Impact Tool

The Carbon Calculator Impact Tool is a digital tool designed to help individuals, organisations, or communities estimate their carbon emissions.

- Start by typing your parish name into the tool to help you get an initial understanding of the emissions in your parish.
- Choose your calculation type: Select from three calculation options:
 - Consumption-based: Focuses on emissions tied to the goods and services consumed by individuals or households.
 - **Territorial:** Estimates emissions produced directly within the geographical boundaries of your area.
 - Split between total and household: Allows you to view emissions at both a community-wide and individual household level.
- The tool generates a detailed breakdown and chart to visually illustrate your emissions profile.
- Navigate to the compare section to see how your footprint stacks up against the national average. This can help you identify areas for improvement and track progress over time.

Is it high?

Many areas of Surrey have higher than average emissions.

The top 3 reasons for a high footprint in Surrey is likely to be:

- Wealthier residents consuming more goods and services.
- High gas consumption, possibly due to larger houses and poor insulation.
- High use of private vehicles, possibly made worse by infrequent public transport.

Input your data in the **Current overview** section of the template.

Detailed <u>User Explanation</u>
Download <u>Raw Data</u>
<u>FAQs</u>

45,216t CO2e*

total consumption footprint (p.a.)

EMISSIONS BREAKDOWN (t CO2e)

Consumption of goods and services	14,672
Housing	11,007
Travel	10,887
Food and diet	8,521
Waste	129

Impact tool

When you first start your plan, the initial Impact Tool calculation serves as your baseline. The tool updates its data every two years, allowing you to compare and track progress.

Downloading the results from the Impact Tool will give you good quality information about the emissions in your parish. As you consider your action plan, you can use the information from the Impact Tool to consider which actions are likely to have the most impact in your parish.

The downloadable report provides an overview of your community's carbon footprint, detailing both the scale of emissions and the key activities contributing to them. The tool allows for carbon footprint analysis at the parish level and can be tailored to different geographical areas. The report includes data on both 'consumption-based' and 'territorial' emissions and compares your community's footprint to district and national averages, offering valuable insights to guide local climate action.







Impact tool

Consumption-Based vs. Territorial-Based Carbon Footprints

1. Territorial-Based Emissions:

- These emissions are calculated based on the greenhouse gases produced within a specific geographic area, such as a county or parish.
- This method includes all emissions from activities like manufacturing, transportation, and energy production that occur within the territory.

2 Consumption-Based Emissions:

- These emissions account for the greenhouse gases associated with the consumption of goods and services by residents of a specific area, regardless of where those goods and services were produced.
- This method includes emissions from imported goods and services and excludes emissions from goods and services that are exported.

Why this matters for your Parish

Understanding these two approaches helps identify where emissions are coming from and how they can be managed. For a parish, focusing on consumptionbased emissions can be particularly insightful because it highlights the impact of residents' lifestyle choices and consumption patterns.

Organisational emissions

Understanding and measuring emissions is an important step in assessing your parish contribution to climate change.

This is only necessary if your parish has significant assets or activities that generate emissions. This might include ownership or influence over buildings, procurement spending, vehicles, or land.

For parishes with limited operational activities, emissions calculations may not be a priority; however, for those with larger assets or responsibilities, quantifying emissions can provide valuable insights to guide sustainable decision-making and climate action planning.

If your parish does have assets or activities generating emissions, understanding and measuring them can provide valuable insights for targeted action. Consider the following:

- **Buildings:** Do you own or manage any buildings that use energy for heating, cooling, or lighting?
- Vehicles: Do you own or operate any vehicles?
- Land: Do you manage parks, open spaces, or farmland?
- **Procurement:** Do you purchase goods or services, such as equipment, maintenance, or supplies, that contribute to emissions?

The following section details where you might find this data in order to start measuring.

Here are the key steps to measuring organisational emissions:

- 1. Identify all sources of your emissions.
- 2. Assess the scale of your activities (e.g., the amount of electricity and gas used, water consumption, etc.).
- 3.Convert these activities into greenhouse gas emission estimates using either the Climate Essentials tool or the DEFRA conversion factors.
- 4. Establish the initial measurement as your baseline and reassess annually to track progress.

Free Surrey decarbonisation course

Although initially designed for small businesses, this course can be useful for parishes to find out how to cut costs and how to calculate your footprint.

This is extremely useful if you have buildings, fleet etc.

Through this course you get a one year free license to 'Climate Essentials' carbon calculator tool.

Link

Organisational emissions

Where to find organisational data.

Energy use

• Bills for parish-owned buildings (such as community halls, offices, and public facilities) will provide annual usage in kilowatt-hours (kWh). You can request detailed historical data directly from their energy supplier if needed.

Transport

- For parish vehicles, use fuel receipts or mileage logs. Each type of fuel has specific conversion factors that can be applied to calculate CO₂ emissions.
- If public or community transport is involved, you can obtain estimates of fuel use or emissions from transport providers.
- You can also perform your own transport surveys to initially help collect data and create a baseline. The Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) release Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Conversion Factors and other resources annually, which can help convert energy usage, fuel consumption, and waste into CO₂ emissions estimates.

Waste

- Contact waste service providers (private or local authority-run) for data on the volume of waste collected from parish buildings, events, or public areas. They may provide breakdowns of waste types, which can then be converted to emissions using DEFRA's waste emissions factors.
- For large parish events, consider tracking the amount and type of waste generated as part of event management.

Water

- Water usage data can be sourced from water bills for parish properties. Water usage has a small but measurable carbon impact due to the energy involved in pumping and treatment.
- For parks or green spaces, tracking rainwater harvesting or water use reduction measures can also support wider goals.



Energy

- Energy Bills gas & electricity
- Other energy for heating, lighting



Water

Water bills

Transport

- Fleet mileage
- Employee mileage for commuting (travel survey)
- Other travel transport (freight)



Goods & Services

- Spend data on supplies, materials, services
- Refrigeration/Cool ing - cooling service details



Waste

- Waste collection notes
- If known: waste vs. recycled, reused, repurposed or food waste 12 amounts

Setting a target & reducing

This section relates to setting a target across organisational emissions, however some points are relevant to other activities that you can encourage across the parish to your residents and businesses.

1. Establish a baseline

Use available data from sources like fuel records, and waste management services. This will give you a baseline for energy use, transport, waste, and other key areas.

Use a carbon calculators. Tools like the Impact Carbon Calculator can help establish an accurate baseline by converting activity data into CO₂ equivalent emissions.

2. Setting a target

- To maximise ambition put your emissions reduction targets in line with the UK gov targets, they are:
 - 46% by 2025
 - 67% by 2030
 - 87% by 2040
 - 92% by 2045
 - 100% by 2050
- Setting this ambition for your parish aligns with Borough, District and County-level plans, so it's a great way to align ambition, whilst recognising that we all need to work together to achieve this level of ambition.
- Or you can set targets based on the actions you want to achieve. To do this you will need to focus on the actions you want to deliver and estimate their impact at the end of the process.

3. Developing a reduction plan

- Identify high impact areas: Use the baseline data to pinpoint where most emissions come from (e.g., buildings, transport, waste). Focus on these areas for maximum impact.
- Outline specific actions. For each area, list actions that can help reduce emissions. For example:
 - Energy: Improve building insulation, switch to LED lighting, and consider renewable energy installations like solar panels.
 - Transport: Encourage car sharing, promote cycling, and explore electric vehicle charge points on parish buildings.
 - **Waste:** Improve recycling, reduce single-use items at events, and promote composting.
- Estimate emission reductions: For each action, calculate or estimate how much it could reduce emissions. This helps prioritise efforts with the biggest impact.

Input this data in the **Organisational emissions** section of the template.

Understanding

Reducing emissions across sectors involves understanding the main sources of emissions in each area and implementing specific, targeted actions. Here's a breakdown by sector.

Energy

- Energy efficiency: Implementing energy-saving measures such as LED lighting, improved insulation, and energy-efficient appliances can lower overall energy demand.
- Transition to renewable energy: Shifting from fossil fuels to renewable sources (like solar) in buildings, street lighting, and community facilities reduces carbon emissions significantly.
- Behavioral changes: Encouraging residents to reduce their energy use through simple actions, like turning off unused lights, also supports lower emissions.

Buildings

- Retrofitting: Adding energy-efficient upgrades to buildings (insulation, double glazing, efficient heating systems) can drastically cut emissions from heating and cooling.
- New builds: Mandating or encouraging green building standards (like BREEAM or LEED) in new developments reduces emissions over the long term through design, material choice, and efficiency.
- Smart technologies: Use of energy monitoring and smart thermostat technologies helps reduce energy consumption by tracking and adjusting energy use.

Transport

- Promote low emission transport options: Encouraging walking, cycling, and public transport use reduces vehicle emissions.
- Support electric vehicles (EVs): Installing EV charging points and supporting electric vehicle incentives can shift local travel from petrol or diesel vehicles to electric, reducing tailpipe emissions.

Waste

- Reduce waste generation: Minimising waste at the source through policies on single-use plastics and promoting a culture of reuse reduces emissions from manufacturing and disposal processes.
- Increase recycling and composting: Expanding local recycling facilities and promoting composting reduces landfill use, which in turn lowers methane emissions.
- Circular economy practices: Encouraging the repair, resale, and recycling of goods supports a circular economy, reducing emissions from manufacturing new products.

Understanding

Agriculture and land use

- Regenerative agriculture: For parishes with local farms, regenerative practices like cover cropping or organic farming methods can improve soil health and reduce emissions.
- Tree planting and land restoration: Initiatives that protect local green spaces, plant native trees, and restore peatlands can capture CO₂ and enhance biodiversity.
- Local food production: Encouraging community gardens or allotments reduces the need for imported goods, lowering emissions associated with transportation and industrial agriculture.

Water

- Efficient water use: Reducing water consumption and fixing leaks can lower emissions related to water processing and pumping.
- Rain water management: Green infrastructure like rain gardens and permeable pavements can reduce stormwater runoff, lowering the energy required for wastewater treatment.
- Low carbon treatment technologies: Parishes can advocate for or invest in efficient wastewater treatment technologies that reduce greenhouse gases from wastewater.

Creating a baseline for Nature & Resilience

Understanding

The first step is to understand what your natural assists are and what designations occur on your land.

(Designations are ways to classify different areas based on their ecological characteristics).

Review the extent of protected sites across your parish – all natural designations including ancient woodland are available on <u>the LNRS map here</u>. There are additional local designations which aren't included but may be of interest such as local green spaces.

You can also use other Geographic Information System (GIS) tools to explore this information such as Land App. Some parishes will have access to this tool but there are also free licences available.

Evaluate & Record

Record and understand what habitats you already have. Using either Land app or Natural England's priority habitat inventory.

Design & Plan

Design actions that line up with Surreys Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS) when released.

 High level priorities will be made more concrete over the coming months and you will receive the final report. Keep an eye out for it!

Reporting

Make sure you are keeping a record of the areas you are undertaking nature recovery actions on. This can be done in your template or on a mapping tool like Land App.

> Input this data in the **Nature & Resilience** section of the template.

Understanding Monitor

It is recommended to design a monitoring program based on activities. However here are some useful schemes with established methodologies. You can start with:

- <u>Pollinator Monitoring Scheme</u> (<u>POMS</u>): A program that helps track pollinator populations like bees and butterflies. It uses a simple and easyto-follow method called FIT (Flower-Insect Timed) counts, where participants count insects visiting flowers within a set time. It's designed to be accessible to everyone, even beginners.
- <u>UK Plant Monitoring Scheme</u>: This program tracks plant species across the UK. While it's slightly more advanced than the Pollinator Monitoring Scheme, it offers different levels of difficulty so that participants can choose a level suited to their experience. Data collected contributes to a national database, helping scientists understand changes in plant populations.
- <u>Big Garden Birdwatch:</u> A popular birdcounting event that encourages people to observe and record the birds in their gardens. While the method isn't as scientific as some, it's an excellent way to get people involved and excited about wildlife.

- <u>Big Butterfly Count:</u> Similar to the Big Garden Birdwatch, this event invites people to count butterflies in their local area. It's easy to join and helps raise awareness about butterfly conservation.
- <u>Swift Mapper</u>: A tool for reporting sightings of swifts (a type of bird) and noting when and where you see them. This data helps monitor their populations and breeding sites.
- <u>The People's Trust for Endangered</u> <u>Species</u>: This organisation offers a variety of wildlife surveys for people to report sightings of endangered species. These surveys cover everything from mammals to insects, helping to track and protect vulnerable species.

Mapping

Record and understand what habitats you already have. Using either Land app or Natural England's priority habitat inventory.

Land app

The Land App is a digital mapping tool designed to help landowners, farmers, and organisations manage and visualise their land data effectively. Parishes can use The Land App to create a nature baseline by mapping and assessing the natural features and habitats within their area. This baseline helps in planning conservation efforts and tracking environmental changes over time.

The app offers various map options and layer options to customise the view and data displayed. Users can add layers such as Ordnance Survey maps, aerial imagery, and habitat data to get a comprehensive view of the land. The filter options allow users to sort and display specific data, such as land use types, ownership boundaries, and environmental features. These tools make it easier to manage land sustainably and make informed decisions about land use and conservation.

Parishes can access The Land App by signing up for an account on the Land App website. The platform offers various subscription levels, including a free option that provides essential mapping tools and features. Once registered, parishes can start using the app to create maps and add data. The Land App also provides extensive help resources, including video tutorials and written guides, to assist users in getting the most out of the platform

Using Land App

To digitise plans in The Land App toolkit, follow these steps:

- Create a new plan: Start by selecting "New Plan" from the dashboard. You can name your plan and choose the type of map you want to create.
- 2. Draw features: Use the drawing tools to outline features on your map. You can draw polygons, lines, and points to represent different elements like fields, boundaries, and landmarks.
- 3. Add data layers: Enhance your map by adding data layers. These can include Ordnance Survey maps, aerial imagery, and other relevant datasets.
- 4. **Customise features:** Adjust the properties of your features, such as color, labels, and measurements. You can also add notes and photos to provide more context.
- 5. **Save and share:** Once your plan is complete, save it and share it with collaborators. You can invite others to view or edit the map as needed.

For more detailed guidance, The Land App provides video tutorials and written guides in their help center.

Land app

The free version of The Land App includes:

- **Simple mapping toolkit:** Quickly digitise plans and key information.
- **Up to 4 maps:** Create and manage up to four maps at a time.
- Invite view only collaborators: Share your maps with others who can view but not edit them.
- **Unlimited photos:** Attach as many photos as needed to your maps.
- Access to government data layers: Utilise authoritative data layers provided by government sources.
- Automated workflows: Benefit from automated processes provided by key partners.
- Free training webinars and online help guidance: Access resources to help you make the most of the app.

These features make it easy to start mapping and managing land data effectively without any cost.







Evaluate

- Map out the space: Create a simple map of your parish land, marking existing features like trees, shrubs, ponds, and green spaces.
- Identify key areas: Include buildings, parking areas, gardens, fields, or any natural features (trees, ponds, etc.).
- **Survey:** Document the types of plants and wildlife in your area. Are there native species, invasive species, or areas that are bare and underused? Use tools like iNaturalist or enlist the help of local environmental groups or ecologists. Consider setting up wildlife cameras for a short period to gather data.
- **Examine habitats:** Look for natural habitats that could be improved or restored. Are there hedgerows, wildflower meadows, or ponds? Could you add new ones or restore degraded areas?
- **Soil health:** Check the condition of the soil in various areas. Healthy, nutrient-rich soil is essential for plants and trees to thrive.



Once you understand what's on your land, make a plan and set clear, actionable goals for managing it. Your goals should reflect your parish values and capacity.

Also consider that that sometimes doing nothing is the best! If you already have diverse habitats, there is no need to replace for the sake of doing something.

- **Improve biodiversity:** Could you plant a wildflower meadow or reintroduce native species of plants and trees?
- **Reduce carbon impact:** Look for ways to reduce the use of fuel-powered mowers or maintenance tools. Is there room for composting or rainwater collection systems?
- **Engage the community:** Think about how your land can serve as an educational or recreational resource. Could you create a prayer garden, meditation trail, or community garden?

Quick wins & long term

Some improvements are simple and can have an immediate impact, while others will require long-term planning and resources. Both are valuable!

- Quick wins:
 - Create a no-mow zone or wildflower area to encourage pollinators.
 - Install bird boxes, insect hotels, or small water features to attract wildlife.
 - Start a parish composting system for garden waste or food scraps.
- Long term projects:
 - Plant trees or hedges to provide shelter, nesting areas, and corridors for wildlife to move between habitats.
 - Restore natural water features or install sustainable drainage solutions.
 - Establish a community allotment or community garden for the community to grow food.

Engagement

Community involvement is crucial for the success of biodiversity projects. By local residents, you can raise awareness about the importance of biodiversity, build community ownership, and increase the impact of your efforts.

- Education and awareness: Hold workshops or talks on biodiversity, sustainable gardening, or climate change. Promote it as part of your parish mission.
- **Citizen science projects:** Encourage residents to participate in biodiversity monitoring projects. This could involve counting local bird species, monitoring butterflies, or submitting sightings of wildlife to citizen science databases.
- Volunteer workdays: Organise regular events where individuals can help with planting, weeding, or creating wildlife habitats.
- **Partnerships:** Collaborate with local conservation groups, schools, or councils. They can provide expertise, tools, and sometimes even funding for your projects.
- **Create a group:** Form a biodiversity or nature group within your parish to lead on specific projects and ensure the community stays engaged and committed.

Why is adaptation important?

- Even if we meet our Net Zero targets globally, we will still have up to 2°C of warming to adapt to, and we're already at about 1°C of warming!
- Most of our infrastructure and services were designed for a totally different climate even to today's conditions. So, we already have an adaptation gap, that we need to adapt to, with more change into the future.
- Should we overshoot our net zero targets globally, we have even more dire impacts, many of which might not be within our ability to adapt to globally.
- So, achieving Net Zero is imperative, and adapting at the same time is a must.

Climate change adaptation is about taking action to reduce the negative impact that climate change will have on your parish.

Adaptation is a non-negotiable reality, as climate change is already having impacts, and like all risks needs to become part of business-as-usual processes.

Adaptation or Resilience?

Resilience

Resilience is often focused on 'building back better' or recovering well from a crisis. It's often using data from the past to improve on how things run, or how we respond into the future. We can think of this as good hindsight.

Resilience = Hindsight!

Adaptation

Adaptation is about using information we have about the future climate (and some of it is also about the recent changes we have seen) and making changes based on that so that we are better able to cope into the future climate. We can think of this as good foresight! Adaptation = Foresight!

What changes could we see?



Heatwaves

- Deadly & medical human challenges
- Roads and rail roads melting
- Overheating of IT equipment & servers
- Food safety agriculture, deliveries



Warmer Temperatures

- Increased costs to keep cool
- Pressure on infrastructure
- Crops
- Disease and pest increase
- Danger to biodiversity and pollinators



Drought

- Water shortage
- Need for more water storage
- Crops and food safety
- Impact on green spaces



Increased Rainfall

- Floods
- Roof leaks
- Water damage
- Access restrictions

Understand your resilience opportunities and threats

To understand resilience opportunities and threats for nature and community wellbeing, you can start by assessing its environmental vulnerabilities and strengths. Resilience planning focuses on strengthening natural systems and building adaptive capacity to withstand climate impacts, such as extreme weather events or flooding. Here's a breakdown of steps for identifying opportunities and addressing threats:

Identify Resilience Opportunities

- Use natural features like wetlands, woodlands, and community green spaces to manage stormwater, improve air quality, and support biodiversity. For example, tree planting and creating wildlife corridors can boost biodiversity and mitigate flooding impacts.
- Engaging residents in local green projects (e.g., community gardens, rewilding initiatives) strengthens social bonds and creates shared responsibility, enhancing community resilience.
- Investing in solar panels, heat pumps, or energy efficient infrastructure for community buildings reduces dependency on fossil fuels and helps increase energy security, which is important during extreme weather events.

Assess potential threats

- Identify risks like flooding, heatwaves, and drought, which can damage infrastructure, threaten human health, and disrupt local ecosystems. Knowing the risks helps in implementing specific resilience measures (e.g., rainwater harvesting or drought-resistant planting).
- Developments, pollution, and invasive species are threats to local biodiversity. Loss of habitats impacts resilience, as biodiversity supports ecosystem services like pollination, soil fertility, and water purification.
- Water scarcity or supply chain disruptions due to climate change can impact local agriculture, food security, and overall community wellbeing. Resilient water management strategies, such as greywater recycling, can help address these risks.
- Identify groups in the community more likely to be affected by climate risks, such as elderly residents or those in flood-prone areas. Planning specific support systems for these populations (like warm hubs) is key to resilience.

Creating the plan

Your journey

The journey of a parish in developing a climate and nature action plan typically follows several key stages. Each stage builds on the foundations for practical actions, community engagement, and long-term sustainability. Here's an overview of what that journey might look like:

Building awareness and getting buy in

- Engaging stakeholders: It is important to bring on board local leaders, council members, and the wider community. It's important to get buy-in early to ensure commitment to the plan.
- Identifying community interest: Surveys, community meetings, and consultations can help identify the priorities and concerns of residents. This engagement also fosters a sense of ownership, encouraging more people to support and participate in future actions.
- **Experts:** There are lots of knowledgeable and talented people that may be willing to provide their expertise towards your plan. So consider forming partnerships with important individuals or groups that operate in your area.

Measuring baseline and identifying key areas

- **Baseline:** Create a baseline so you can understand the overall emissions and impact of the parish. You can measure against your baseline to track progress and reductions.
- Identify priority areas: Based on the baseline data, you can identify key areas for improvement—such as reducing building emissions, improving local biodiversity, or enhancing waste management. This helps focus the action plan on areas rather than trying to tackle everything at once.

Set clear targets

- Establishing goals and milestones: With priorities identified, parishes need to set measurable and achievable targets. Examples include reducing emissions by a certain percentage by a specific year or planting a certain number of trees.
- **Creating a timeline:** Breaking down the journey into stages with timelines—such as short-term, medium-term, and long-term goals—helps keep the parish on track and makes the plan more manageable.

Developing and documenting the action plan

- **Drafting the plan:** The parish council or a dedicated climate action group drafts the plan via our template, outlining specific actions, responsibilities, timelines, and resource needs.
- Peer review and community feedback: Before finalising, it's helpful to seek input from other parishes or community members to get their input can strengthen the plan and ensure it reflects local needs.

Your journey

Implementation of actions

- **Starting with quick wins:** Tackling small, visible projects first can build momentum and demonstrate commitment.
- Mobilising volunteers and resources: Many actions will require volunteers and possibly fundraising. The parish may also need to collaborate with local organisations or apply for grants.
- Engaging the community: Keeping the community involved during implementation—through regular updates and events, can help maintain momentum and support.

Monitoring and adjusting

- **Track progress:** Regularly monitor progress towards goals, using specific metrics tied to the initial targets. This might involve tracking energy use, evaluating reductions in waste, or measuring improvements in local biodiversity.
- Evaluate and adapt: Based on progress, the parish may need to adjust its actions or timelines. Challenges and new opportunities will arise, and a flexible approach helps keep the plan on course.

Reporting on progress and celebrating milestones

- **Public updates:** Periodic reports keep the community informed of successes and remaining challenges. This transparency can be shared through newsletters, social media, or community events.
- **Recognising contributions:** Celebrate key milestones and publicly recognise individuals or groups who have contributed. This reinforces community support and shows that efforts are paying off.

Reviewing and renewing the plan

- **Annual review:** Set a review date to review the action plan to see what's working, what's not, and what new actions might be needed. This keeps the plan relevant and focused on ongoing improvement.
- Long term vision: Climate action is an ongoing journey. As targets are met, the parish can set new ones, ensuring continued progress toward a sustainable and resilient community.
Involvement

Britain talks climate

Britain Talks Climate is an evidence-based toolkit designed to help engage the British public on climate change. Developed by Climate Outreach, it segments the population into seven groups based on core beliefs, making it easier to tailor climate communication to different values and concerns.

This toolkit is particularly useful for engaging with people because it:

- 1. **Builds resonance:** It helps create narratives that resonate with diverse values and everyday concerns, making climate discussions more relatable.
- 2. **Reduces polarisation:** By understanding different viewpoints, it fosters more inclusive and less polarised conversations.
- 3. **Strategic engagement:** It provides a shared understanding of public attitudes, helping to strategically engage across the whole community.

The "Britain Talks Climate" initiative identifies several key motivating factors that influence how different segments of the British public engage with climate change.

Use these insights to help align the plan with varied values. Not everyone prioritises "sustainability," but many care about health, local economic resilience, or energy savings. Frame actions in ways that resonate with these values, for instance, emphasising air quality improvements or cost savings from energy efficiency

Understanding these factors can help tailor communication and engagement strategies to effectively address the concerns and motivations of different groups.



Involvement

Involving partners and the local community can help you tap into additional resources, expertise, and funding while also boarding the reach and impact of any climate initiatives.

Use clear, relevant messaging

Connect the action plan to local priorities by using relatable examples from Surrey or nearby areas, which resonate more with community members. This approach builds trust and makes sustainability goals feel achievable.

Highlight how community members are joining efforts or how neighboring parishes are acting on climate. normative appeals—showing that "others are doing this"—can be powerful motivators, encouraging people to feel part of a shared mission.

Time Scale

A timescale establishes a structured approach, ensures accountability, and helps the community stay motivated as they see progress. A well-organised timescale provides clear deadlines for each objective, allows for realistic resource allocation, and breaks down goals into manageable steps.

By having both short and long-term aims, the parish can make immediate visible changes that build momentum while working steadily toward broader, longer-term goals.

0-2 Years: Short term goals

1. Baseline and awareness

- Measure missions and create baseline.
- Host community workshops on climate change and sustainability.
- 2. Quick impact actions
 - Begin a tree-planting or community garden project.

3. Community engagement

- Hold community meetings to gather input and ideas.
- Start fundraising events and apply for grants for early projects.

4. Immediate energy savings

- Upgrade parish buildings with LED lighting and energy-saving measures.
- Launch monthly climate updates in newsletters or online.

2-5 Years: Medium term goals

Build action groups

• Form volunteer groups focused on specific goals (e.g., biodiversity, transport, energy).

2. Infrastructure upgrades

- Begin larger projects like solar panel installation on parish buildings.
- Develop shared transport options or EV charge points

3. Progress measurement

- Conduct a mid review of emissions and other measurable impacts.
- Share progress with the community to maintain engagement.

5+ Years: Long term goals

1. Achieve key milestones

- Meet emissions reduction targets or complete conservation goals.
- Finalise large-scale projects, such as a parish-wide renewable energy initiative.

2. Sustainability integration

- Ensure new parish projects align with climate and nature goals.
- Establish a routine process for updating and improving the action plan.

3. Community celebration

- Celebrate progress with parish events or recognition programs.
- Renew short- and medium-term goals to address evolving needs and keep the plan dynamic.



Actions & Surrey resources

Actions you can take across specific areas with Surrey resources

Actions & Surrey resources

The following section, Actions and Resources, outlines a range of Surrey-based initiatives and tools to help parishes begin their journey toward sustainability. While not an exhaustive list, these suggestions provide practical ways to get started. They include a mix of local initiatives and actions, some offering quick wins and others requiring more long-term commitment, all designed to support meaningful progress in addressing climate change within the Surrey context.

Buildings

Energy assessment HEAT

In Surrey we have a Home Energy Advice Team (HEAT) who provide FREE in person energy advice. This service is delivered by trained community members via our partner Zero Carbon Guildford. They conduct the thermal imaging surveys at homes, and provide remedial measures for quick wins.

Following the survey, you will be signposted to the most relevant resources based on your circumstances. This might be a referral to funding programs, energy debt support, or, if you want to invest in long term energy saving measures you can be referred to the <u>Home</u> <u>Energy Improvement One Stop Shop</u> where you can find trusted installers for solar panels, insulation and air source heat pumps.





Surrey County Council (SCC) has launched a Home Energy Improvement One-Stop Shop in partnership with Furbnow to help residents upgrade their homes with energy-saving measures like insulation, heat pumps, and solar panels. This initiative offers eligible homeowners a 60% discount on a Home Energy Plan and project management services.



The Home Upgrade Grant (HUG) provides financial support for low-income households to improve energy efficiency. The Surrey Energy Advice Tool is an online resource that offers personalised recommendations to help residents reduce energy consumption and costs. These combined efforts aim to make homes more energy-efficient, comfortable, and environmentally friendly.

Switching

Community switching

Community energy switching is where a group of people in the community come together to switch their energy supplier as a collective. This approach can leverage the bargaining power of the group and negotiate better energy rates!

Participants typically sign up through a dedicated platform, and the program administrators can then negotiate with energy suppliers to secure the best deal for the group.

Community energy switches can also support wider goals by prioritising suppliers that offer green energy options, thereby reducing the community's overall carbon footprint

> Check out Energy Savings Trust for more details

Switching to renewable tariffs

This is a simple step to effectively reduce emissions. This can be done whether you rent, own your home or run a business.

For this, you can switch your own buildings and encourage residents to switch to reneweables.

Parish owned buildings

New EPC regulations make it a requirement for landlords to obtain higher energy efficiency standards for both domestic and non domestic buildings. Non-domestic require a EPC E rating, and domestic requires an EPC rating of C.

You can get a whole building plan from a certified retrofit company, however understanding your building, systems and materials is a key starting point.

Understanding the building

- When do systems and material need to be replaced?
- Measure current usage and emissions
- What falls under your 'control'?
- What are the risks of not retrofitting?

What is needed?

- When do you need to meet EPC standards?
- Plan for both a light and deep retrofit plan

Draft a business case

- Look at the benefits beyond the legal compliance:
 - Reduced operating costs
 - Increased value
 - Avoiding penalties for non compliance

Identify barriers and opportunities

- Upfront costs
- Increased business rates
- Communicating changes

Targets

- Create a baseline so you can measure success
- I.e, Achieve a higher EPC rating
- Reduce operational energy
- Work towards net zero certifications

A standardised approach

 If you own multiple buildings it will be useful to create a standardised approach - this helps with planning for financial costs and priorities

Optimise existing operations

• If you own multiple buildings it will be useful to create a standardised approach - this helps with planning for financial costs and priorities

Use low carbon services and materials

 If you replacing anything, prioritise low carbon services and materials. I.e, renewable tariffs, LED lighting, building fabric and improving heating systems

Prioritise reuse

- There should be a priority on refurbishment
- Carbon life assessments will allow you to compare the impact against carbon savings

Review performance

- Set KPI's so you can measure your success and track progress
- There are also voluntary certification's you can apply for such as PAS2038:2001

Solar Together

Solar Together is a group buying scheme that allows you to join forces with your community to invest in solar panels, with optional battery storage and EV charging points. This scheme can also be used by small businesses and buildings.

If you already have solar panels, you can still participate in the scheme to buy battery storage - helping maximise your panels and increase your independence from the grid!

Register your interest for Solar Together here

Community energy

Community energy schemes are projects where local communities come together to generate, manage and sometimes distribute their own energy.

- Local ownership and control: The projects are often owned and controlled by the community members themselves, which means the benefits, such as profits and energy savings, stay within the community.
- **Renewable energy focus:** These schemes usually involve renewable energy generation, helping to reduce carbon footprints and promote sustainability.
- Economic and social benefits: Profits from these projects can be reinvested into the community, funding local initiatives and improving infrastructure. <u>They also create local</u> jobs and foster a sense of community cooperation.
- **Energy independence:** By generating their own energy, communities can reduce their reliance on the national grid, which can lead to greater energy security and potentially lower energy costs.
- Environmental impact: Community energy projects often aim to minimise their environmental impact, carefully selecting sites and technologies that are in harmony with the local landscape and biodiversity

Check out Surrey Community Energy

Transport

On demand bus service

On demand bus services is a flexible public transport option that adjusts its route and schedule to passenger requests.

This type of service is designed to be more convenient and efficient, especially in areas where traditional bus routes may not be practical. It's a great way to encourage people to use public transport!

Surrey Connect has incorporated electric mini buses into its fleet, allowing them to reduce their emissions and offer a greener transport option.

Available in:

- Mole Valley
- Farnham
- Cranleigh
- Tandridge
- Longcross
- West Guildford
- Runnymede
- Some areas of Surrey Heath
- Wider Guildford borough
- Waverley

More information here

Better Points

Surrey's BetterPoints is a rewards program designed to encourage sustainable travel and healthy living. By using the BetterPoints app, residents can earn points for activities like walking, cycling, using public transport, and even using on demand bus services. These points can then be redeemed for vouchers, spent at local businesses, or donated to charity.

Key features:

- Earn points: Accumulate points for every minute of active travel or for using public transport.
- Redeem rewards: Spend your points on high street vouchers, local businesses, or donate them to charity.
- Track your activity: The app automatically tracks your trips, making it easy to earn points without extra effort.
- Support local economy: By spending points locally, you help boost the local economy.

This initiative not only promotes a healthier lifestyle but also supports environmental sustainability by reducing carbon footprints and encouraging the use of eco-friendly transport options.

For business:

Try 'Carbon Crush' which is the employee version of Better Points

EV Charging

There are several different models you can use to create EV charging points in your parish.

SCC has currently has the largest contract of any UK local authority to deliver EV charging. Working with Connected Kerb we're aiming to install 10,000 charging points – and these could be free of charge for your parish (to be eligible the public must be able to access the chargers).

In this model, you do not get any income from charging, but you also don't pay any installation fees.

Surrey EV Chargepoint Interactive Map

Surrey have a EV Chargepoint interactive map that helps facilitate the installation of electric vehicle (EV) chargers across the county. Residents can drop a pin on the map to suggest locations where they would like to see new EV chargepoints installed. Ideal locations are near residential properties with limited or no off street parking. The map provides updates on the installation progress and allows users to stay informed about new developments.

Workspace charging scheme

The Workplace Charging Scheme (WCS) is a UK government initiative aimed at encouraging businesses, charities, and public sector organisations to install electric vehicle EV chargepoints at their workplaces. Here are the key points:

- Voucher based scheme: The WCS provides vouchers to cover up to 75% of the purchase and installation costs of EV chargepoints, capped at £350 per socket.
- **Eligibility:** The scheme is available to registered businesses, charities, and public sector organizations in England, Wales, Scotland, and Northern Ireland1.
- **Application process:** Eligible applicants receive a unique voucher code after applying online, which they can use with authorised installers.
- **Limitations**: Each applicant can claim up to 40 sockets across all their sites.

This scheme helps reduce the upfront costs of installing EV infrastructure, promoting the adoption of electric vehicles in the workplace.

Link to map

Cycle Training

Surrey County Council delivers Bikeability training to over 10,000 children in primary schools across Surrey, but did you know you can also request cycle training for your residents? Cycle training is delivered in very small groups and there are a range of courses to choose from including:

- Learn to Ride for Adults
- Independent Cycle to School
- Parent and Teen cycle training
- Introduction to Riding on Roads
- Adult Town Centre cycle confidence

Courses last for around two hours. Currently adult cycle training is offered for free, however this may change depending on funding. For more information, please email public.cycletraining@surreycc.gov.uk



Food & Waste

Here are some suggestions that can further support sustainable waste and food management:

Local reuse shops

Surrey's waste centres host reuse shops where residents can donate and purchase items like furniture, tools, and household goods, keeping valuable materials out of landfills. These shops provide affordable options while supporting a circular economy. Parishes can encourage residents to donate or shop here instead of discarding usable items.

Composting initiatives

Composting at home can greatly reduce the amount of household food and garden waste sent to landfill. Parishes can promote composting by hosting workshops or providing guidance materials, encouraging residents to turn their organic waste into compost for gardens.

If there's available green space, parishes could set up a shared compost area for residents who don't have space at home. This communal resource helps manage food and garden waste sustainably.

Zero waste

Highlight nearby zero-waste stores or markets that allow shoppers to bring their own containers for bulk items, reducing single-use packaging. A parish could share a list of local zero-waste stores nearby.

Parishes could set up designated areas for collecting and exchanging reusable packaging materials like jars, containers, or cloth bags, providing a convenient option for residents to reduce waste.

Swaps

Seasonal swap events (e.g., clothing, books, toys) help residents exchange unwanted items rather than throw them away.

Promote local freecycle or Facebook groups where residents can give away items they no longer need. This digital solution complements in-person events by enabling continuous reuse within the community.

Community fridge

A community fridge provides surplus food to the community which would have otherwise gone to waste! They help reduce food waste and combat food insecurity by allowing surplus food from households, businesses, and local gardens to be shared within the community.

Anyone can contribute or take food, fostering a sense of mutual aid and community support.

Case Study: ZERO

So far in 2024 alone they've...

- Supported 11,298.00 residents
- Prevented 26.2 tons of food waste
- Prevented 65 tons of CO2e emissions
- Partners: Waitrose Aldi, Sainsbury, Tesco, M&S, Gails and Black Sheep
- 'It's only worth getting out of bed on Tuesday & Thursday to come to ZERO for the fridge. I really like it here, I like the people.'

Sourcing Food

To run a Community Fridge you'll need a supply of food (and a fridge!) Where will you get the food? Approach local supermarkets, check they're prepared to donate food (they may give it all to Fareshare). Ask local bakers, sandwich shops etc.

Community Need

Is there another fridge nearby? Are you in a Priority Neighbourhood? Will the fridge get used, or will you just be an extra stop before it goes to waste?

Where will you put the fridge?

You'll also need somewhere secure to house the fridge. What community groups, local authority buildings, charities might you team up with?

Find a community fridge

Repair cafe

A Repair Café is a community event where people can bring their broken items to be fixed by skilled volunteers. These events are designed to reduce waste, promote sustainability, and encourage a culture of repair rather than disposal.

They are also a great way to help residents upskill *and* to relieve isolation.



Farnham repair cafe

So far:

- 81 events held
- 1,910 repairs completed
- 5.4 Tonnes of landfill diverted
- £155,593 saved by citizens
- 51 Tonnes of CO2e avoided
- 98% customer satisfaction

Community Need

Is there another repair café nearby? Are you in a Priority Neighbourhood? Will the café be used?

What will you fix?

Once you establish the needs of the community it will help you decide what you should prioritise in your repairs. Will you mend clothes, refurbish bikes, fix electronics, upholster furniture?

This will determine the skills set you require, and what tools you'll need to secure.

Find a repair cafe

Land Use & Nature

Water health

Steps to get involved in water monitoring:

- Identify key areas: Get a clear picture of the water bodies within your parish. This includes identifying any rivers, streams, ponds, lakes, or wetlands. Start to identify potential pollution sources
- Reach out to local water quality groups: Contact groups like Water Rangers, the Rivers Trust, or the Environment Agency to find out how you can join or support their water quality monitoring efforts.
- Organise a volunteer group: Encourage residents to get involved in monitoring water quality. Volunteers can be trained to test water for pollutants such as nitrates, phosphates, and pH levels, and track changes over time.
- Conduct regular water testing: Once trained, your parish can conduct regular tests of local water bodies, building a clear picture of water health. This data can be shared with regional or national bodies to contribute to broader environmental monitoring efforts.

Find out more

SCC Tree Scheme

Surrey County Council has a free tree giveaway scheme aimed at enhancing green spaces. Here are some key points about the scheme:

- **Tree giveaway events:** The council organizes tree giveaway events at various locations, such as libraries. For example, an upcoming event is scheduled for February 3rd, where residents can pick up a free tree on a first-come, first-served basis.
- **Planting and care:** Recipients are encouraged to plant the trees within a week of collection. The council provides a care leaflet to help ensure the trees are planted and maintained properly.
- **1.2 Million tree strategy:** This initiative is part of Surrey County Council's broader strategy to plant 1.2 million trees by 2030. The goal is to combat climate change and improve local biodiversity.
- **Community involvement:** The council also organises volunteer tree planting events, allowing community members to actively participate in the planting process and contribute to the environment.



Blue heart verge

A "Blue Heart Verge" is a designated verge or green space left that is unmown to encourage biodiversity. A blue heart marker—signals to the community that the area is a deliberate conservation effort, promoting wildflowers, pollinators, and other wildlife.

For a parish to get involved, you can:

- 1. Identify suitable spaces: Choose verges or small patches of land where mowing can be reduced or adapted.
- 2. Engage the community: Inform residents about the purpose and benefits of Blue Heart Verges through signage, meetings, or social media.
- 3. Apply for a blue heart marker: Organisations like Blue Campaign (which promotes rewilding efforts) offer guidance on acquiring blue heart markers for verges, helping create visibility and unity across communities engaging in rewilding.

Find out more



Money

Decarbonisation assessment and loan from SCC

The Decarbonisation Assessment and Loan program by Surrey County Council is designed to help businesses and organisations reduce their carbon emissions. Here's how it works:

1. Decarbonisation assessment:

- **Energy audit:** An expert conducts a thorough energy audit of your premises to identify areas where energy efficiency can be improved and carbon emissions reduced.
- **Recommendations**: Based on the audit, you'll receive a detailed report with recommendations for energy-saving measures and potential upgrades to more sustainable technologies.

2. Loan for implementation:

- **Financial support:** SCC offers loans to help cover the costs of implementing the recommended energy efficiency measures. This financial support makes it easier for businesses to invest in sustainable practices without bearing the full upfront cost.
- **Repayment terms:** The loans typically come with favorable repayment terms, making it financially manageable for businesses to repay the loan over time while benefiting from reduced energy costs.

Find out more

Your Councillor Community Fund

The Surrey Your Councillor Community Fund is a grant program managed by Surrey County Council, where each Councillor is allocated £5,000 annually to support local community projects. This fund allows Councillors to use their local knowledge and insight to fund projects that will benefit their communities.

Find out more

Get started!

Tell your story

Why should you tell your story?

Inspire community engagement

• Sharing the process of developing a climate action plan can help community members feel more connected to the plan and more likely to contribute. When people see the steps taken, they understand the purpose and become motivated to join in.

Build trust and transparency

• Openly discussing the planning journey builds trust. It shows that the parish has carefully considered community needs and environmental impact, which can reassure members and stakeholders.

Encourage accountability

• Regularly updating the community on progress holds the parish accountable and makes it easier for people to track milestones. This accountability can help ensure the parish stays on course with its goals.

Set a positive example for other parishes

• Sharing successes, challenges, and lessons learned can inspire other parishes or local councils to start their own initiatives, helping to spread positive climate action on a wider scale.

Celebrate community and progress

• Storytelling allows the parish to recognise and celebrate contributions from individuals, local businesses, and groups. Acknowledging these efforts keeps spirits high and fosters a sense of shared achievement.

A structure to start this can be found on the template.



Raise money

Long terms funding

- Establish a parish climate fund: Build a designated fund for climate initiatives, where Parish funds, event proceeds, and sponsorship's are directed. This fund could finance both immediate actions and future projects.
- Explore loan opportunities for larger projects: For big investments like solar installations, some community banks and ethical lenders (like Triodos Bank) offer low-interest loans for sustainability projects. These loans can be repaid gradually through energy savings or other project benefits.

Building partnerships

- Collaborate with local organisations: Partner with nearby schools, environmental non government organisations (NGO), or community groups to share resources and apply for joint grants. Partnerships can also attract funders looking to support collaborative initiatives.
- Corporate sponsorship and CSR funds: Approach local companies about Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) opportunities. Many companies are willing to fund local sustainability projects as part of their CSR commitments.

Seeking grants

Identify potential grants: Many UK organisations and government bodies offer grants for community-led environmental projects.

Some key sources include:

- National Lottery community fund: Provides grants for community projects, including those focused on sustainability and nature.
- **The Woodland Trust:** Offers free trees and sometimes funding for planting projects.
- **DEFRA's Local Authority Treescapes Fund:** Available for tree planting in urban and rural areas.
- The Climate Action Fund (National Lottery): Funds projects that tackle climate change through community action.
- **Groundwork UK:** Supports projects on environmental improvements and building community green spaces.

Use grant databases and directories:

- Funding central: A database for UK grants, suitable for smaller community organisations.
- **GrantNav:** Lists grants from various UK funders, searchable by location and project type.
- Charity excellence framework: Offers a funding finder tool with various grant options, including those for environmental and community projects.

Support local action

Educate and raise awareness

- Workshops and talks: Host regular events to educate parish members on climate change, sustainable practices, and how they can contribute. Topics could include home energy efficiency, sustainable gardening, or waste reduction.
- **Communication**: Use newsletters, social media, and parish websites to share information, tips, and success stories. Keep the community informed on climate issues and progress on parish initiatives.
- Invite guest speakers: Bring in local environmental experts or activists who can share knowledge and inspire local action.

Local action network

- Connect with local environmental groups: Partner with existing environmental organisations, conservation charities, or local government initiatives to share resources and align goals.
- Form a parish climate action group: Invite community members to join a committee dedicated to implementing and supporting climate initiatives. This group can provide ideas, organise events, and act as a link between the parish council and the wider community.
- Involve local schools: Work with schools on projects such as tree planting, recycling, or climate education.

Knowledge sharing

- Linking up with other parishes and sharing knowledge creates a more resilient and connected approach to climate action.
 - Via Surrey Climate Commission we have created a peer-to-peer network where you can chat with other parishes, to discuss ongoing projects, share what's working well, and seek advice on obstacles.

Decision making

A climate action plan can guide decision-making by setting priorities, aligning spending, and ensuring actions have measurable environmental benefits.

Set priorities

The plan outlines specific climate goals, like reducing emissions or enhancing biodiversity. When choosing new projects, you can prioritise initiatives that align with these goals, like opting for renewable energy sources or eco-friendly building materials.

Having clear goals around sustainability helps avoid "ad-hoc" or reactive decisions and ensures that every action contributes to the parish long-term objectives.

Sustainability policies

The plan encourages decisions on lowcarbon purchasing and contracting, which can guide tenders or supplier agreements toward suppliers with sustainable practices.

It can also help set a precedent for decisions that benefit public health, such as reducing air pollution. Engaging residents around these goals builds support and encourages community-wide action.

Budgeting and resources

The action plan can highlight priority areas, such as energy efficiency, waste reduction, or sustainable transport. This helps allocate funds to initiatives that drive measurable impact, focusing resources on high-priority emissions reductions or nature restoration.

Regularly reviewing expenditures against climate goals (e.g., via carbon accounting methods or emissions factors) can identify and redirect spending toward greener alternatives in procurement, utilities, and services.

Track and adjust

A climate action plan includes measurable goals and KPIs (like emission reduction targets), which can be used to evaluate the impact of decisions over time. If targets aren't met, the parish can adjust actions or adopt new strategies to stay on course.

Regular assessment of decisions against climate metrics allows for adjustments in policy, budget, or project focus. This adaptability ensures that the parish stays responsive to changing climate conditions or new opportunities, like funding for green infrastructure.

Reporting

To set up regular reporting on their climate and nature action plan, establish a structured reporting system with simple tools to track progress, collect data, and communicate outcomes effectively. Here's how:

Create a schedule

- Annual reports: These provide a detailed overview of progress, challenges, and any adjustments to goals or actions. An annual report can include emissions reductions, biodiversity improvements, and public engagement updates.
- Quarterly or biannual updates: Shorter updates allow for monitoring ongoing projects and making necessary adjustments more frequently. These can include updates on energy usage, waste reduction, or project-specific progress.

Community dashboard

- Public reporting: Share data on a public dashboard or the parish website to keep the community informed and involved. Try creating visuals representation of progress, making the data easy to understand and engaging for residents.
- Feedback collection: Incorporate a section for community feedback to gather residents thoughts on the parish climate progress. This allows for ongoing community engagement and new ideas.

Track

- Designate responsibility: Assign roles to parish members or committees for tracking specific areas like emissions, nature, or community involvement. This ensures accountability and consistency in data collection.
- Digital tracking tools: Use tools like Microsoft Excel or Google Sheets for simple tracking. These tools allow for real-time data entry, easy sharing, and clear visualisation.

Benchmark and compare

 Compare with other parishes: Regularly compare performance with other parishes or councils to identify best practices. Tools like SCATTER (Setting City Area Targets and Trajectories for Emissions Reduction) can support regional alignment and goal setting, helping to keep the parish on track with broader climate goals.

Extra resources

This sesction includes extra resources and information that you might useful in developing your Climate and Nature action plans!

Carbon Budget

You may require additional methods to help calculate data. This could include using financial records, like spending or purchasing details, and working with suppliers to get information about their activities. By also using established emissions factors—standard figures to estimate emissions—you can create a clear and reliable system for tracking the parish impact.

Per pound expenditure method

Begin by categorising expenditures, such as office supplies, utilities, and services, and then use DEFRA's GHG Conversion Factors for Purchased Goods and Services. These factors translate financial outlays into carbon emissions based on industry averages (e.g., CO₂e per £ spent on different categories like office supplies, construction, and maintenance). This method provides a baseline for emissions tied to spending.

https://www.gov.uk/government/collection s/government-conversion-factors-forcompany-reporting

Accounting software

As mentioned some accounting software, like Sage, Xero, or QuickBooks, allows for detailed tracking and categorisation of expenditures, making it easier to align spending with DEFRA's conversion factors.

Collaborate

For high-emission purchases, you can reach out to suppliers directly to request emissions data related to the goods or services they provide. Some suppliers may already have data or can provide estimates, particularly in sectors like energy, construction, and waste management. This can yield more precise data than industry averages.

Calculating

There are different tools you can use to help you measure your emissions. Some accounting software also have a built in calculator.

Impact tool

As mentioned, this tool is designed to help parishes and small communities estimate emissions based on typical data sources and local input.

Access: Available for free online; requires only a postcode to get started.

Link

SCATTER Tool

Although designed for cities, SCATTER can be useful for parishes with substantial data on local energy, transportation, and waste management.

Access: Free for UK public sector organisations and community groups.

Link

Local Footprint Project

Part of the Sustainability Research Institute at the University of Leeds, this tool allows local authorities, parishes, and communities to assess their carbon footprint based on publicly available data.

Access: Requires an application and may be more suited to parishes with support staff.

Carbon Trust

Although initially designed for small businesses, this tool can be useful for parishes with straightforward energy and fuel use data.

Access: Free to use on the Carbon Trust website.

Link

UK Government Greenhouse Gas Reporting Conversion Factors

Not a calculator, but a dataset with updated emissions factors that can be used to convert activity data (like kWh of energy or litres of fuel) into emissions.

Link

Free Surrey decarbonisation course

Although initially designed for small businesses, this course can be useful for parishes to find out how to cut costs and how to calculate your footprint.

Access: Year subscription when you take this course

Link

Engagement workshop draft

Here's a structured outline to get you started in running an engagement session to consult on your priorities:

Logistics and Agenda Guide

1. Objectives

- Discuss parish priorities.
- Initiate the creation of a climate engagement plan.

2. Timings

- Arrival and Registration: 09:00 09:30
- Welcome and Introduction: 09:30 09:45
- Session 1: Identifying Priorities: 09:45 11:00
- Break: 11:00 11:15
- Session 2: Climate Engagement Planning: 11:15 12:30
- Lunch: 12:30 13:30
- Session 3: Group Discussions and Feedback: 13:30 15:00
- Closing Remarks and Next Steps: 15:00 15:30

3. Preparation

- Materials Needed:
 - Flip charts, markers, sticky notes.
 - Printed agendas and handouts.
 - Projector and screen for presentations.
- Pre-Session Tasks:
 - Send out invitations and reminders.
 - Prepare and distribute pre-reading materials.
 - Arrange for refreshments and lunch.
 - Set up the venue with necessary equipment and seating arrangements.

4. Venue

- Location: [Insert Venue Name and Address]
- Facilities:
 - Ensure the venue has adequate seating and space for group activities.
 - Check for accessibility features.
 - Arrange for audio-visual equipment setup.
 - Confirm availability of Wi-Fi and other necessary amenities.

5. Facilitators

- Lead Facilitator:
 - Role: Guide the overall session, keep time, and ensure objectives are met.
 - Preparation: Familiarise with the agenda, prepare opening and closing remarks.
- Session Facilitators:
 - Role: Lead specific sessions, facilitate discussions, and manage group activities.
 - Preparation: Prepare session materials, coordinate with the lead facilitator, and engage with participants.

6. Agenda Details

- Welcome and Introduction:
 - Brief overview of the session's purpose and objectives.
 - Introduction of facilitators and participants.
- Session 1: Identifying Priorities:
 - Interactive discussion to identify key priorities for the Parish.
 - Use of flip charts and sticky notes for brainstorming.
- Session 2: Climate Engagement Planning:
 - Presentation on climate engagement strategies.
 - Group activities to draft initial plans.
- Session 3: Group Discussions and Feedback:
 - Breakout groups to discuss specific topics.
 - Collect feedback and consolidate ideas.
- Closing Remarks and Next Steps:
 - Summarise key points and outcomes.
 - Outline next steps and follow-up actions.

Feel free to adjust the timings and details to better fit your Parish needs.

Creating Climate and Nature action plans for Parishes

greenerfutures@surreycc.gov.uk



Carbon Footprint Report:

Godalming

Civil parish

12/10/2024



1. Your Footprint Report

Welcome to your carbon footprint report!

This report tells you about your community's carbon¹ footprint – both the scale of emissions and the main activities responsible for the emissions. This information comes from *Impact* – an online community carbon footprint calculator: <u>https://impact-tool.org.uk/</u>.

The tool was developed by the Centre for Sustainable Energy and the University of Exeter, initially to make carbon footprinting at parish level possible. Since its inception a number of improvements have been made, including the ability to look at different-sized geographical areas.

Your report shows both 'consumption based' and 'territorial' emissions, and also shows how your footprint compares with the district average and the national average.

It shows your 'territorial' and 'consumption' footprints.

There are two ways of viewing a community's carbon footprint: territorial-based, or consumption-based.

Territorial footprints consider the emissions produced within a geographical boundary – such as from heating buildings, transport, industry, and agriculture – regardless of whether the residents within the community are engaged in or demand those activities. For example, if a factory lies within the boundary of a local authority, then regardless of whether what is produced in the factory is consumed locally or exported to other parts of the country (or world), the factory's emissions would still be counted as part of that local authority's territorial footprint. A territorial footprint is largely created by taking national and local authority datasets and cutting these down to the local geography in as accurate a way as possible.

A consumption footprint captures all the emissions produced from the activities that the area's residents engage in, regardless of where geographically they occur. For example, emissions resulting from the food they eat, the clothes and household items they buy, the leisure activities they engage in, their travel behaviours, and the heating of their homes. The consumption-based footprint is based on household and address-level data, which is then aggregated up to the community level (rather than cutting down from a higher geography as with the territorial approach).

A canoon' footprint, includes carbon dioxide as well as other gases which impact the climate.

12/10/24, 2:40 PM

Impact Report - Godalming



Apples and pears.

Showing both territorial and consumption footprints gives you useful information, but it is important to recognise that the two footprints cannot be directly compared as they look at the question of 'where do our emissions come from' in different ways, using different methods, and with different datasets.

Take your footprint as a guide, not as complete fact.

The carbon footprints are modelled, drawing on data from more than 30 datasets (some of which are themselves made up of multiple further datasets!). As with all models, decisions have been taken in terms of what data is used, and how the data is 'cut' and analysed. The Impact footprints have been developed with the intention that they are as useful as possible, but remember to take them as a guide, not as complete fact.

If you would like more detail about the method and datasets, please read the Impact methodology paper: <u>https://impact-tool.org.uk/static/doc/Impact-methodology-paper-v2.2.pdf</u>.

You can also download the raw data here: <u>https://impact-tool.org.uk/download</u>

How does knowing our carbon footprint help us tackle climate change?

Footprint information can guide us to where we should target our efforts to reduce emissions and have the greatest impact. To help you think about what to do next with your footprint information, in each section of this report there are change targets for reaching net zero, and some questions to help you think about possible areas for action.

Note that these footprints are intended to raise awareness and improve understanding of the types of activities which contribute to emissions in any given area in order to stimulate individual and collective action. Local Authorities may well have carried out their own analysis and have made climate emergency declarations, drafted action plans, set out policies or be delivering schemes. We hope that the Impact tool can be used to complement this activity.



2. Your Community's Consumption Footprint

Your whole footprint

This figure shows the annual carbon emissions (measured in tonnes CO_2e^2) emitted as a result of the different activities that residents within your parish's boundary engage in – from heating to eating.



Goods – all household goods (not food), including homeware, toiletries, medicines, furnishings, electronic goods, appliances, & large items such as cars.

Services – use of services, including the maintenance and repair of home, vehicles and other equipment, banking and insurance, medical services, treatments, education costs, communications (e.g. TV, internet and phone contracts), and other fees and subscriptions.

Other - leisure, entertainment, sporting or social activities.

A breakdown of the numbers

The table below shows your area's consumption footprint – total estimated emissions and per-household averages – so that you can see a breakdown of the numbers.

² Constands for "carbon dioxide equivalent" and is a standard unit of measurement in carbon accounting. It expresses the impact of a number of different gases collectively as a common unit.
	Total emissions (t CO ₂ e)	Per-household emissions (t CO2e)	%
Total emissions	135,333	13	100
Consumption of goods and services	44,941	4.3	33
Housing	31,213	3	23
Travel	30,596	2.9	23
Food and diet	27,746	2.6	21
Waste	836	0.1	1

How does your area compare?

Here is what the average consumption footprint for your area looks like per household, and how this compares with the district average and the national average. Note that these per household footprints are averages. Within a larger (e.g. local authority) area you may have neighbourhoods with very different per household consumption footprints and it will be worth looking at more granular data if you are planning area-specific initiatives or messaging.



Housing

Change targets:

- Hugely reduced energy demand from existing buildings, including heritage and older buildings
- Smarter and more flexible energy demand patterns, including uses of batteries for excess renewable energy to be stored for later use
- Decarbonised heat generation (this means using heat that has not been generated from fossil fuels e.g. instead is generated by a heat pump)
- New buildings and developments achieve net zero emissions (including associated new transport)

Your community's residents' use of energy in their homes results in annual carbon emissions per household of 3 t CO₂e. This compares with 3.9 t CO₂e at the district level and 3.4 t CO₂e at the national level. In the average UK home, 64% of energy is used for space heating, 17% for heating water, 16% for lighting and appliances, and 3% for cooking³. As such a large proportion of household energy is used for heating, the type of heating system (i.e. is it low carbon?), and how well the home retains heat, are critical factors shaping the scale of a home's emissions. How well a home retains heat depends on anumber of factors, including: when and how it was built; how much insulation has been installed; how draughty the home is; the efficiency of the windows; and the behaviour of the residents.

Carbon footprints covering a large geographical area will encompass a range of smaller communities with different housing types and demographics. This will influence the types of activities which are most likely to be successful and have the greatest impact in terms of reducing emissions from housing.

Below are some questions to help you to start to think about the implications of your community's household footprint information.

- How does your community's household energy use compare with the the district and national averages? What might the reasons be for the differences?
- What type of housing is there in your community? And what is the main heating fuel (oil, gas, electricity, etc.)?
- Is the housing easily retrofitted to improve how well it retains heat and install low carbon heating? Do you know if residents are doing this? Are there already initiatives to increase demand and encourage and support residents to take action?

 3 Energy facts from: Energy consumption in the UK, BEIS (January 2021)



- What opportunities are there to retrofit community buildings?
- Many homes, public and commercial buildings have an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) which measures the energy efficiency of the property. You can look at the EPCs of the buildings in your community here: <u>https://epc.opendatacommunities.org</u>
- Could you identify homes and buildings where the residents / owners have already made improvements, and showcase these for example with an event?
- Have you explored local potential for renewable energy generation schemes, such as a solar farm, rooftop solar, or wind? Could a community owned (or jointly owned) initiative be possible?
- Are there opportunities to shift households, community buildings and businesses in your area onto green energy tariffs, where energy is generated from renewable sources?

Transport

Change targets:

- Reduced private car travel and a comparable increase in active travel (walking and cycling) and public transport use
- A complete shift to electric vehicles for remaining road mileage, after shifting a large proportion of private car journeys to other modes (public transport/active travel)
- Massively reduced air travel, particularly among frequent flyers

Car use: Residents' car use results in annual carbon emissions per household of 1.3 t CO_2e . This compares with 1.4 t CO_2e at the district level and 1.4 t CO_2e at the national level.

Air travel: Residents' air travel results in annual carbon emissions per household of 1.2 t CO₂e. This compares with 1.2 t CO₂e at the district level and 1.1 t CO₂e at the national level.

Public transport: Residents' use of public transport results in annual carbon emissions per household of 0.4 t CO_2e . This compares with 0.4 t CO_2e at the district level and 0.4 t CO_2e at the national level.

Below are some questions to help you to start to think about the implications of your community's transport footprint information.



- How do your community's car use-related emissions compare to public transport emissions? And how do these both compare with the district and national averages? What might the reasons be for the differences?
- Could existing or new community schemes help residents shift their transport behaviours to using public transport (if this is a choice) or more active travel options (e.g. electric bike hire or subsidised purchase schemes)? How could the impact of local initiatives be increased?
- Is there scope more strategically to influence provision of public transport (e.g. routes, frequency, fares, subsidies, low carbon fleets)?
- What is the provision of walking and cycling routes like? How accessible are local service centres and facilities to residents in different neighbourhoods? Is it possible for most households to access what they need without needing to use a car?
- What do you think are the key reasons for air travel in your community? Are there likely to be differences between residents of different neighbourhoods? It is worth noting that about 10% of England's population take more than half of all international flights so trying to address 'frequent flying' is a good way to target any activities or communications campaign.

Food & diet

Change targets:

- Altered dietary patterns, especially reduced meat and dairy consumption, and a massive reduction in food waste
- Widely adopted land management practices that reduce emissions, increase soil carbon and protect and promote biodiversity

Meat and fish: Residents' consumption of meat and fish results in annual carbon emissions per household of 1.8 t CO_2e . This compares with 1.8 t CO_2e at the district level and 1.9 t CO_2e at the national level.

Other food and drink items: Residents' consumption of other food and drink items results in annual carbon emissions per household of 0.8 t CO_2e . This compares with 0.8 t CO_2e at the district level and 0.9 t CO_2e at the national level.

Research shows us that changing *what* we eat will have a greater impact on carbon emissions than changing *where* our food has travelled from – although, of course, eating locally-produced food brings multiple other benefits such as supporting local economies, having more control over mandating more ethical and environmentally-beneficial growing practices, and creating opportunities for people to better understand where the food they eat comes from and how it's grown or made.

Whilst the emissions from a food item can really vary depending on how it is grown or reared, it is clear that animal products, and most significantly beef and lamb, account for the largest proportion of food-related emissions. Explore the BBC's Climate Change Food Calculator to better understand how food and drink items compare:

<u>https://www.bbc.com/future/bespoke/follow-the-food/calculate-the-environmental-footprint-of-your-food.html</u>³.

Below are some questions to help you to start to think about the implications of your community's food and diet footprint information.

- How do your community's food and diet-related emissions compare with the district and national averages?
- Could you establish or support a behavioural change campaign to encourage people to reduce the amount of meat and dairy they consume? (It is critical that any community-based activity or communications campaigns around dietary changes is sensitive to concerns about farmers' livelihoods and people's cultural and traditional links to meat-eating).
- The amount of food wasted 'post-farm-gate' in the UK is equivalent to 22% of food purchased. What initiatives could raise awareness about food waste and encourage unwanted food to be redistributed (e.g. through a 'community fridge')?

Goods & services

Change targets:

- Decarbonised power generation (this means using electricity that does not come from fossil fuels e.g. instead is generated from solar panels)
- Hugely altered consumption patterns, buying less and re-using & repairing more

Goods & services: Residents' consumption of goods and use of services results in annual carbon emissions per household of 4.3 t CO_2e . This compares with 4.2 t CO_2e at the level and 4.1 t CO_2e at the national level.

⁴ For further information, you can also read this Our World in Data (Oxford University) study: <u>https://ourworldindata.org/food-choice-vs-eating-local</u>



All goods that we buy will have had carbon emitted in their making (including the sourcing of raw materials), packaging, shipping and sale. Without clear carbon labelling, it is difficult to know the scale of emissions resulting from each item, but it is clear that with every new product made, more carbon is emitted (and more resources are extracted and sourced – which itself can have huge environmental and social impacts). Reducing how many *new* goods we buy in the first place is the best place to start in terms of reducing goods-related emissions; and then of course re-using and repairing items where goods are needed.

Carbon emissions from the services we use will relate to the energy used by that service provider (e.g. heating in a leisure centre, pub or hospital), as well as the carbon emitted as a result of goods they buy and use (e.g. gym equipment, vehicle repair machinery).

Here are some questions to help you to consider ways to reduce emissions attributable to goods and services:

- How do your community's goods and services-related emissions compare with the district and national average? What might the reasons be for the differences?
- Are there opportunities to: grow the second-hand market; enable residents to upcycle and repair household items; share larger/more expensive/rarely used items, such as power tools?
- Are there opportunities to encourage businesses to switch to green energy tariffs (where energy is generated from renewable sources), or to support local businesses who want to reduce their emissions (e.g. with cargo bike deliveries to replace vans; energy efficiency improvements to buildings to reduce heat demand; low carbon procurement policies; local sourcing and carbon-conscious materials?

Waste

Change targets:

- Greatly increased recycling rates, achieving a 'circular economy', and taking unnecessary plastics and other packaging out of the waste stream.
- Widespread, actively managed and planned carbon capture and storage strategies.

Waste: The management of residents' waste results in annual carbon emissions per household of 0.08 t CO_2e . (Emissions associated with waste management are different out evenly across the population.)

The waste 'wedge' in your carbon footprint may look small, but remember that emissions from the *management* of waste only represent a small fraction of the total emissions associated with every item that ends up in our bins or recycling boxes. So reducing waste in the first place is critical.

- What sort of messaging could be effective in helping to reduce the amount of waste being generated (e.g. avoiding plastic packaging, water bottle refills, home composting)?
- What initiatives are likely to be popular (e.g. local food boxes, repair cafes, swap shops)?



3. Territorial Footprint

Your whole footprint

This figure shows the annual carbon emissions (measured in tonnes) emitted as a result of activities taking place within your parish's boundary.

While these figures should give you a reasonable indication of the major sources of emissions within your parish's boundary, they should be taken with a small pinch of salt, as some sectors are difficult to apportion territorially. For example, emissions from international shipping are calculated for the whole country and apportioned to each parish based on its population. For more information, see the <u>Impact methodology paper</u>.





The table below shows your parish's territorial footprint – total and per-household averages – so that you can see a breakdown of the numbers.



	Total emissions (t CO ₂ e)	Per-household emissions (t CO ₂ e)	%
Total emissions	74,125	8	100
Housing	31,213	3.2	42
Mains gas	22,689	2.3	31
Electricity	8,368	0.9	11
Biomass	63	< 0.1	< 1
Oil	55	< 0.1	< 1
Coal	20	< 0.1	< 1
LPG	19	< 0.1	< 1
Industrial and commercial	14,809	1.5	20
Mains gas	6,439	0.7	9
Electricity	5,431	0.6	7
Other Fuels	2,938	0.3	4
Large industrial consumers	0	< 0.1	< 1
Road Transport	13,781	1.4	19
Aviation	5,847	0.6	8
Shipping	4,820	0.5	7
F-gases	2,227	0.2	3
Agriculture	907	0.1	1
Livestock and crop-related emissions	614	0.1	1
Fuel	294	< 0.1	< 1
Waste management	502	0.1	1
Diesel fuelled railways	18	< 0.1	< 1
Other Transport	0	< 0.1	< 1

Below are some questions to help you to start to think about the implications of your community's territorial footprint information.

- Are there particular sectors which account for a high proportion of the territorial emissions in your community?
- Based on your knowledge, are these sectors surprising or are they what you would expect?
- Who are the key stakeholders you would need to engage with to address the emissions from the highest emitting sectors?
- For example for agricultural emissions can you engage with local land owners, or the NFU/other farmer groups to understand what is happening in your area to reduce emissions from agriculture? For industrial and commercial emissions, are there ways that businesses could be supported with reducing their emissions? For road transport what changes would be needed to improve public and active travel links?

4. Sources of information

There are lots of sources of support and information on how to reduce carbon footprints – too many to list here! Here is an introductory range of resources that we hope will help you take your next steps now that you know your carbon footprint. Most of these contain many other links relevant to the topic under discussion:

CSE resources

- Support for town and parish councils: <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/my-community/support-for-town-and-parish-councils</u>
 Future Energy Landscapes: a community consultation method to start a
 - conversation about renewables in your area: <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/my-community/community-projects/future-energy-</u> <u>landscapes-community-consultation-method</u>
 - Community Retrofit Guide: <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/resource/community-retrofit-guide</u>
 - Funding for your community project or building: <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/resource/funding-for-your-community-project-or-building-2</u>
 - Climate action support for town and parish councils:
 <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/my-community/support-for-town-and-parish-councils</u>
 - Home energy factsheets:
 <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/resource/home-energy-fact-sheets</u>
 - Neighbourhood Planning in a Climate Emergency guide: <u>https://www.cse.org.uk/my-community/engagement-planning/neighbourhood-plans</u>

Engaging and communicating

- Britain Talks Climate is an evidence-based toolkit designed to support any organisation that wants to engage the British public on climate change: https://climateoutreach.org/britain-talks-climate/
- Place standard tool. This is an engagement tool developed by Public Health Scotland provides a simple framework to structure conversations about place, based around 14 questions. There is a climate focused version of the tool as well. <u>https://www.ourplace.scot/About-Place-Standard</u>



Other resources

- The National Association for Local Councils has also produced a list of case studies of local councils doing work on the climate emergency: https://www.nalc.gov.uk/library/our-work/climate-change/3297-climate-change-case-studies/file
- Ashden Trust, tools for councils: <u>https://ashden.org/sustainable-towns-cities/tools-for-councils</u>
- The Community Works, offering links to expert advice on local change and climate action: <u>https://www.thecommunityworks.co.uk</u>
- Hubbub, climate action resources: <u>https://hubbub.org.uk</u>
- Possible, climate action resources and case studies: <u>https://www.wearepossible.org</u>
- Community Energy England: <u>https://communityenergyengland.org</u>



GODALMING TOWN COUNCIL

Disclosure by a Member¹ of a disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest (non-pecuniary interest) in a matter under consideration at a meeting (S.31 (4) Localism Act 2011 and the adopted Godalming Members' Code of Conduct).

As required by the Localism Act 2011 and the adopted Godalming Members' Code of Conduct, **I HEREBY DISCLOSE**, for the information of the authority that I have [a disclosable pecuniary interest]² [a registerable interest (non-pecuniary interest)]³ in the following matter:-

COMMITTEE:

DATE:

NAME OF COUNCILLOR:

Please use the form below to state in which agenda items you have an interest.

Agenda No.	Subject	Disclosable Pecuniary Interests	Other Registerable Interests (Non-Pecuniary Interests)	Reason

Signed

Dated _____

¹ "Member" includes co-opted member, member of a committee, joint committee or sub-committee

² A disclosable pecuniary interest is defined by the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) regulations 2012/1464 and relate to employment, office, trade, profession or vocation, sponsorship, contracts, beneficial interests in land, licences to occupy land, corporate tenancies and securities

³ A registerable interest (non-pecuniary interest) is defined by Section 9 of the Godalming Members' Code of Conduct.